Public Document Pack

31 March 2021

To:

Councillors Benson, Brookes, Campbell, Farrell, Hobson, Kirkland, Smith, Taylor and
L Williams

The above members are requested to attend the:

EXECUTIVE
Monday, 12 April 2021 at 6.00 pm
Zoom Meeting

AGENDA
ADMISSION OF THE PUBLIC TO COMMITTEE MEETINGS
The Head of Democratic Governance has marked with an asterisk (*) those items where the
Committee may need to consider whether the public should be excluded from the meeting as
the items are likely to disclose exempt information.
The nature of the exempt information is shown in brackets after the item.

1

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members are asked to declare any interests in the items under consideration and in
doing so state:
(1) the type of interest concerned either a
(a)
(b)
(c)

personal interest
prejudicial interest
disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI)

and
(2) the nature of the interest concerned
If any member requires advice on declarations of interests, they are advised to contact
the Head of Democratic Governance in advance of the meeting.

2

SUPPORTED HOUSING SCRUTINY REVIEW INTERIM REPORT

(Pages 1 - 10)

To present the interim findings and recommendations of the Supported Housing Scrutiny
Review to the Executive for consideration.
3

LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN PROGRAMME 2021/2022

(Pages 11 - 18)

To consider the 2021/2022 Local Transport Plan Programme, which includes Integrated
Transport Block and Highways Maintenance Block elements (both capital spend) and the
complementary Potholes highways maintenance allocation (revenue spend), all grant
allocations from the Department for Transport as notified mid-February 2021
4

DELIVERING SOCIAL VALUE IN PUBLIC SERVICE PROCUREMENT - REVIEW OF THE
COUNCIL'S SOCIAL VALUE POLICY AND SUPPLIERS CHARTER
(Pages 19 - 38)
To consider and approve the Council’s updated Social Value Policy and Supplier Charters.
Once approved these documents will form part of the Council’s Executive policy
framework.

5

LEVELLING UP AND COMMUNITY RENEWAL FUND

(Pages 39 - 60)

To summarise the main provisions of the Levelling Up Fund and Community Renewal
Funds announced in the March 2021 Budget and the Council’s approach to managing
applications for these funds.
* 6

APPROVAL TO AWARD A CONTRACT FOR A FINANCE MANAGEMENT AND
EPROCUREMENT SYSTEM
(Pages 61 - 70)
To consider the appointment of a preferred bidder to provide a Finance Management
and EProcurement system and all associated implementation, support and maintenance
services.

Other information:
For queries regarding this agenda please contact Lennox Beattie, Executive and Regulatory
Manager, Tel: (01253) 477157, e-mail lennox.beattie@blackpool.gov.uk
Copies of agendas and minutes of Council and committee meetings are available on the
Council’s website at www.blackpool.gov.uk.

Agenda Item 2
Report to:

EXECUTIVE

Relevant Officer:

Sharon Davis, Scrutiny Manager

Relevant Cabinet Members:

Councillor Neal Brookes, Cabinet Member for Housing and
Welfare Reform and Councillor Jo Farrell, Cabinet Member
for Adult Social Care and Health

Date of Meeting:

12 April 2021

SUPPORTED HOUSING SCRUTINY REVIEW INTERIM REPORT
1.0

Purpose of the report:

1.1

To present the interim findings and recommendations of the Supported Housing Scrutiny
Review to the Executive for consideration.

2.0

Recommendation(s):

2.1

To consider the two recommendations of the interim report of the Supported Housing Scrutiny
namely:
i.

That Blackpool Council establishes its own standards for what supported housing
should look like in the town and that scrutiny plays an active role in developing these
standards.

ii.

That the Council writes a letter to the local MPs setting out the key issues relating to
supported housing in the town and requests that they lobby Government for new
legislation that allows for more control over the sector.

3.0

Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1

The Scrutiny Review Panel believes the recommendations will work towards provision of a
better standard of supported accommodation within the town. The writing of a letter to the
local MPs will be a timely intervention and provide additional weight to the outcomes of the
ongoing pilot scheme which will be reported to Government in due course. The
establishment of aspirational standards for accommodation will take time to develop and it is
hoped that the Blackpool Standards can be ready for implementation immediately should
regulation in the sector change. The development of the standards will also consider to what
extent they can be applied should there be no change in regulation.

Page 1

3.2

Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by the
Council?

No

3.3

Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget?

No

4.0

Other alternative options to be considered:

4.1

The Executive may choose not to approve the recommendations, but will be requested to provide
the reasons for the decision to the Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee.

5.0

Council priority:

5.1

The relevant Council priority is: “Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing
resilience.”

6.0

Background information

6.1

The Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee considered and approved the interim
report of the Supported Housing Scrutiny Review and its meeting on 17 March 2021. It is
unusual for a scrutiny review to provide an interim report, however, Members of the Panel
considered that the two key recommendations identified would be best achieved if they
could be implemented as soon as practicable, with the review panel reconvening in due
course to consider any outstanding issues. Once the review has concluded a final report will
be submitted to the Executive setting out any additional conclusions and recommendations.

6.2

The interim report of the Supported Housing Scrutiny Review is attached at Appendix 2(a).

6.3

Does the information submitted include any exempt information?

7.0

List of Appendices:

7.1

Appendix 2(a): Supported Housing Scrutiny Review Interim Report

8.0

Financial considerations:

8.1

Contained within Appendix 2(a).

9.0

Legal considerations:

9.1

Contained within Appendix 2(a).

Page 2

No

10.0

Risk management considerations:

10.1

Contained within Appendix 2(a).

11.0

Equalities considerations:

11.1

Contained within Appendix 2(a).

12.0

Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations:

12.1

Contained within Appendix 2(a).

13.0

Internal/external consultation undertaken:

13.1

Contained within Appendix 2(a).

14.0

Background papers:

14.1

Contained within Appendix 2(a).

15.0

0Key decision information:

15.1

Is this a key decision?

15.2

If so, Forward Plan reference number:

15.3

If a key decision, is the decision required in less than five days?

15.4

If yes, please describe the reason for urgency:

16.0

Call-in information:

16.1

Are there any grounds for urgency, which would cause this decision to be
exempt from the call-in process?

16.2

No

If yes, please give reason:

Page 3

No

No

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC GOVERNANCE
17.0

Scrutiny Committee Chairman (where appropriate):
Date informed:

18.0

Date approved:

Declarations of interest (if applicable):

18.1
19.0

Executive decision:

19.1
20.0

Date of Decision:

20.1
21.0

Reason(s) for decision:

21.1
22.0

1Date Decision published:

22.1
23.0

Executive Members in attendance:

23.1
24.0

Call-in:

24.1
25.0

Notes:

25.1

Page 4

Appendix 2a: Report to Adult Social Care and
Health Scrutiny Committee 17 March 2021
Report to:

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

Relevant Officer:

Mrs Sharon Davis, Scrutiny Manager

Date of Meeting:

17 March 2021

SUPPORTED HOUSING SCRUTINY REVIEW INTERIM REPORT
1.0

Purpose of the report:

1.1

To set out the interim findings and recommendations of the Supported Housing Scrutiny
Review.

2.0

Recommendation(s):

2.1

To recommend to the Executive that Blackpool Council establishes its own standards for what
supported housing should look like in the town and that scrutiny plays an active role in
developing these standards.

2.2

To recommend to the Executive that the Council writes a letter to the local MPs setting out
the key issues relating to supported housing in the town and requests that they lobby
Government for new legislation that allows for more control over the sector.

2.3

That the Scrutiny Panel reconvenes in due course to consider the issue of ‘out of area
placements’ further.

3.0

Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1

The recommendations aim to improve provision of supported accommodation in the town.

3.2

Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by the
Council?

No

3.3

Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget?

Yes

4.0

Other alternative options to be considered:

4.1

None.

5.0

Council priority:

5.1

The relevant Council priority is:

Page 5

Appendix 2a: Report to Adult Social Care and
Health Scrutiny Committee 17 March 2021


Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing resilience.

6.0

Background information

6.1

The Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee first received a report on the provision
of supported housing on 7 January 2020. The report provided an overview of supported
housing in the town, defining supported housing as any housing scheme where
accommodation is provided alongside care (not necessarily commissioned social care),
support or supervision to help people live as independently as possible in the community.
This includes:
 Older people with support needs
 People with learning and physical disabilities
 Individuals and families at risk of or recovering from homelessness
 People recovering from drug or alcohol dependency
 Offenders and ex-offenders
 Vulnerable young people (such as care leavers or teenage parents)
 People with mental ill health
 People at risk of domestic abuse.

6.2

The Committee learnt during the course of the meeting that supported housing was funded
through housing benefit, that there had been an increase in the number of supported
accommodation schemes in the area over the previous few years, that due to the nature of
the schemes they could attract very high rents and service charges which landlords expected
to be met through housing benefit and that schemes did not always attract full subsidy from
the Department of Work and Pensions and could therefore be costly to the local authority.

6.3

Key concerns raised during the meeting included the cost of supported housing, with the
average weekly rent per tenant varying between £79.90 and £355.58 per week; the lack of
regulation of providers – although national standards for supported housing had been
produced they were guidance and not legally enforceable; and that vulnerable people with
mixed and sometimes conflicting needs were often placed together with support that was
not appropriate to meet their needs. The Committee therefore determined that a scrutiny
review be established to further investigate supported housing.

6.4

The Review Panel was established comprising Members of the Adult Social Care and Health
Scrutiny Committee and three Members of the Tourism, Economy and Community Scrutiny
Committee due to the cross-cutting nature of the issue. It was originally scheduled to meet
during March 2020, however, due to the Covid-19 pandemic the meeting was postponed and
the Review Panel eventually held its first meeting in November 2020. At this first meeting,
Members were informed that the Council had successfully bid to participate in a pilot scheme
related to supported housing with the Ministry of Communities, Housing and Local
Government. As part of the pilot, the authority would be looking to use the existing tools,
powers and regulations in order to try and influence supported housing developments and

Page 6

Appendix 2a: Report to Adult Social Care and
Health Scrutiny Committee 17 March 2021
gain some control over the support provided to residents and where the provision was
located. This would then create an evidence base to be submitted to Government to allow
them to see what worked and what might need changing in order to gain control of the issue.
6.5

During the first Panel meeting Members delved deeper into the concerns raised that
vulnerable people were not receiving the support they needed and it was considered that the
pilot scheme would offer an increased level of scrutiny on quality standards. Concern was
also raised regarding the high levels of supported housing in some wards where former, large
holiday accommodation was situated. The prevalence on some particular roads or areas
often resulted in high levels of anti-social behaviour which affected local residents and could
have a detrimental impact on the wider population and it was noted that the pilot aimed to
address this issue. Planning and legal advice over the control and location of supported
housing was also being considered as a key part of the pilot.

6.6

The Review Panel met for a second time in March 2021 to consider a number of aspects of
supported housing in more detail including the existing thresholds and current criteria to be
met, how risks and vulnerabilities of people in the accommodation were identified, the cost
to the Council and the current and potential future roles of the Council.

6.7

Key areas of discussion during the meeting included the difference between matched and
unmatched supported accommodation, the extent to which tenants were known to Adult
Social Care, the potential exploitation of vulnerable adults, an update on the pilot scheme
and the large number of people placed in supported accommodation from outside of the
Blackpool area.

6.8

Members considered that despite the fact that they would currently be unenforceable, work
should begin on the Blackpool standards for supported accommodation. The Blackpool
standards could go over and above the national standards as appropriate to set out the
Council’s aspiration for support and accommodation in the town. There could be separate
standards dependent on the tenant and support required. It was noted that during the pilot
process, it had been suggested that local standards would be appropriate and the Panel
considered that Scrutiny should have an active involvement in the development of the
standards.

6.9

It was considered that the key change required to ensure improvement in support housing
provision was for stronger legislation to be introduced in order to allow the Council to take
action on providers to make improvements and compel them to engage with the Council
more thoroughly in order to identify whether the scheme was appropriate for the town in
the first instance. Stronger legislation could give the Council more influence over location,
type as well as quality of provision.

6.10

A final key area of concern identified during the meeting was the high number of vulnerable
people being brought in from out of area by providers in order to take places within
supported housing in the town. Concern was raised that some other local authorities might

Page 7

Appendix 2a: Report to Adult Social Care and
Health Scrutiny Committee 17 March 2021
be aware of the practice and appointed agencies to locate vulnerable and difficult to place
adults in Blackpool, resulting in a person outside of their home town with no local
connections and therefore increasing their vulnerability. It was noted that in 2018, 84% of all
new housing benefit claimants (including but not exclusive to those in supported housing) in
Blackpool had been made by adults from out of the area. Members considered that this issue
required further investigation to determine whether any action could be taken in order to
influence future placements from out of the area.
6.11

The Review Panel agreed that in order to progress with the recommendations identified as
quickly as possible that an interim report of the Panel be submitted for consideration by the
Executive with a further meeting established in due course to consider the outstanding
issues. Following approval by the Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee, a
summary report will be provided to the Executive for approval.

6.12

Does the information submitted include any exempt information?

7.0

List of Appendices:

7.1

None.

8.0

Financial considerations:

8.1

The recommendations can be implemented within existing resources.

9.0

Legal considerations:

9.1

The Blackpool standards referred to in the recommendation at 2.1 would not be legally
enforceable without a change to legislation.

10.0

Risk management considerations:

10.1

None.

11.0

Equalities considerations:

11.1

None.

12.0

Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations:

12.1

None.

13.0

Internal/external consultation undertaken:

13.1

None.

Page 8

No

Appendix 2a: Report to Adult Social Care and
Health Scrutiny Committee 17 March 2021
14.0

Background papers:

14.1

None.

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
Report to:

EXECUTIVE

Relevant Officer:

Alan Cavill, Director of Communications and Regeneration

Relevant Cabinet Member:

Councillor Jim Hobson, Cabinet Member for Climate Change
and Environment

Date of Meeting:

12 April 2021

LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN PROGRAMME 2021/2022
1.0

Purpose of the report:

1.1

To consider the 2021/2022 Local Transport Plan Programme, which includes Integrated
Transport Block and Highways Maintenance Block elements (both capital spend) and the
complementary Potholes highways maintenance allocation (revenue spend), all grant
allocations from the Department for Transport as notified mid-February 2021.

2.0

Recommendation(s):

2.1

To approve the draft Local Transport Plan Programme 2021/2022 as attached at Appendix 3a
with effect until 31 December 2022.

2.2

To grant authority to the Director of Communications and Regeneration following
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Climate Change and Environment, subject to a
published officer decision, to vary the programme as required to deliver overall objectives
and ensure spend of the grant allocations.

3.0

Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1

In order that an objective-led Local Transport Plan works programme is put in place.

3.2

Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by the
Council?

No

3.3

Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget?

Yes

4.0

Other alternative options to be considered:

4.1

Not to approve the item, which would mean Blackpool Council will not have an approved Local
Transport Plan works programme in place.

Page 11

5.0

Council priority:

5.1

The relevant Council priority is: “The economy: Maximising growth and opportunity across
Blackpool”.

6.0

Background information

6.1

The Department for Transport notified local authorities of their Local Transport Plan
allocations in mid-February 2021. Funding amounts provided are for the financial year
2021/2022. The Highways Maintenance Block (HMB) needs, HMB incentive and Integrated
Transport Block (ITB) allocations are all calculated based on existing formulas. Figures are
then rounded. The HMB incentive allocation is indicative at the time of writing, based on a
band 3 assessment for the highways maintenance self-assessment questionnaire. ‘Potholes’
highways maintenance funding is allocated using the same formula as HMB ‘needs’.

6.2

Blackpool’s allocations for 2021/2022 are as follows:
 Highways Maintenance Block (HMB) ‘needs’ - Capital funding: £667,000
 HMB incentive – Capital funding: £167,000 (indicative)
 Integrated Transport Block (ITB) - Capital funding: £1,733,000
 Potholes highways maintenance - Revenue funding: £667,000
In line with the Capital Programme 2021/2022 a Corporate top slice of 12.5% is applied to the
Capital Spend.

6.3

The draft Local Transport Plan Programme 2021/2022 is attached at Appendix 3a. This shows
a total capital spend of £2,246,000 after the top slice. Resources are split £730,000 Highways
Maintenance Block and £1,516,000 Integrated Transport Block. The ‘Potholes’ funding
(£667,000) is shown separately under highway maintenance. The draft programme’s
proposed spend areas are outlined below:

6.4

The highway maintenance elements are to address the maintenance backlog on the road
network and ensure inspections of bridges and structures are up to date. There is a
contribution to the ongoing Project 30 repayments and a relatively small allocation for staff
costs to support the programme.

6.5

The Integrated Transport Block funded programme comprises the following elements:
 Road safety measures - priorities to be identified.
 Traffic control and highway network enhancements - supporting regeneration and
growth in and around the town centre.
 Public realm enhancements - small-scale schemes to be considered.
 Parking provision and management - enhancing parking management and supporting
the coach trade which is vital to Blackpool’s visitor economy.
 Bus infrastructure - primarily to renew Blackpool’s ageing bus shelters.

Page 12

 Cycling and walking - responding to Government initiatives on active travel,
progressing a ‘Blackpool Wheel’ cycle route and improving public cycle parking.
 Monitoring - primarily for manual traffic counts and automatic traffic counters.
 Programme and scheme development – for scheme design; and to maintain support
for the South Fylde Line Community Rail Partnership.
 Electric Vehicle charging points – introducing new facilities in public car parks for
residents and visitors to use.
 Staff costs - supporting the programme outlined above and the Appendix 3a.
6.6

The Local Transport Plan process is objective-led, the above is in support of the following
agreed strategic objectives:
 Objective 1 - Improve, maintain and make best use of Blackpool’s transport network;
in particular its roads, footways and bridges.
 Objective 2 - Improve road safety by interventions that reduce the number of people,
particularly children, killed and seriously injured on Blackpool’s roads.
 Objective 3 - Manage congestion levels on Blackpool’s roads, especially where it
impacts on local economic performance.
 Objective 4 - Improve transport to and within the resort, particularly by more
sustainable modes, to enhance the visitor experience and support the local economy.
 Objective 5 - Improve the efficiency and management of parking to support the local
economy, especially for shoppers and visitors.
 Objective 6 - Improve access to healthcare, education, employment, shops,
social/leisure opportunities and resort attractions, particularly by sustainable modes.

6.7

Does the information submitted include any exempt information?

7.0

List of Appendices:

7.1

Appendix 3a: Local Transport Plan Programme 2021/2022

8.0

Financial considerations:

8.1

As shown in the Appendix 3a and paragraphs 6.1 - 6.3 above.

9.0

Legal considerations:

9.1

None.

Page 13

No

10.0

Risk management considerations:

10.1

Without approval of this item, Blackpool Council will not have an approved Local Transport
Plan works programme in place.

11.0

Equalities considerations:

11.1

No issues identified.

12.0

Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations:

12.1

Highway network and public realm enhancements will also improve conditions for
sustainable travel. In addition, there are specific programme lines for bus infrastructure,
cycling and walking, and electric vehicle charging points.

13.0

Internal/external consultation undertaken:

13.1

Collaborative working has taken place between officers to agree the indicative programme.
The programme is carefully considered during its development, with reference to known
stakeholder issues. No external consultation has been undertaken to date, but the agreed
programme will be tabled at the Highways Consultative Forum.

14.0

Background papers:

14.1

None.

15.0

0Key decision information:

15.1

Is this a key decision?

15.2

If so, Forward Plan reference number:

15.3

If a key decision, is the decision required in less than five days?

15.4

If yes, please describe the reason for urgency:

16.0

Call-in information:

16.1

Are there any grounds for urgency, which would cause this decision to be
exempt from the call-in process?

16.2

Yes

If yes, please give reason:

Page 14

9/2021
No

No

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC GOVERNANCE
17.0

Scrutiny Committee Chairman (where appropriate):
Date informed:

18.0

31 March 2021

Date approved:

Declarations of interest (if applicable):

18.1
19.0

Executive decision:

19.1
20.0

Date of Decision:

20.1
21.0

Reason(s) for decision:

21.1
22.0

1Date Decision published:

22.1
23.0

Executive Members in attendance:

23.1
24.0

Call-in:

24.1
25.0

Notes:

25.1

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 3a
DRAFT Local Transport Plan Programme 2021/2022
£,000s
Highways Maintenance Block 2021/2022
Total Highways Maintenance Block (Capital)

834
104
730

Objective 1: Highway maintenance
Bridges and structures
Project 30 repayment
Road maintenance
Staff costs
Programme area total

65
283
372
10
730

Potholes Fund 2021/2022 (Revenue)

667

Total maintenance

1397

Corporate top slice

Integrated Transport Block 2021/2022
Corporate top slice
Total Integrated Transport Block (Capital)

1733
217
1516

Objective 2: Road safety
Road safety measures

60

Objective 3: Congestion
Traffic control and highway network enhancements

600

Objective 4: Economy
Public realm enhancements

300

Objective 5: Parking
Parking provision and management

40

Objective 6: Accessibility
Bus infrastructure
Cycling and walking

165
165

Programme area sub-total

330

Supporting items
Monitoring
Programme and scheme development
Electric Vehicle charging points
Staff costs

55
11
100
20

Programme area sub-total

186

Integrated Transport Block sub-total
Total Capital spend

Page 17

1516
2246

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
Report to:

EXECUTIVE

Relevant Officer:

Steve Thompson, Director of Resources

Relevant Cabinet Member:

Councillor Ivan Taylor, Deputy Leader of the Council
and Cabinet Member for Partnerships and Projects

Date of Meeting:

12 April 2021

DELIVERING SOCIAL VALUE IN PUBLIC SERVICE PROCUREMENT –
REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL’S SOCIAL VALUE POLICY AND SUPPLIERS
CHARTER
1.0

Purpose of the report:

1.1

In 2014, the Executive approved the Social Value Policy, which had been developed in
conjunction with the Association of Greater Manchester Authorities. The Policy is supported
by a set of arrangements and supporting documents for embedding Social Value in
commissioning and procurement by the Council in accordance with the Public Service (Social
Value) Act 2012.

1.2

In order to improve Social Value delivery the Policy has been updated along with the
associated Suppliers Charter. All suppliers are asked to sign the Charter prior to contract
award. These arrangements include provisions for evidencing social value considerations in
all decisions relating to the commissioning and procurement of services.

2.0

Recommendation(s):

2.1

To approve the updated Social Value Policy as attached at Appendix 4a with effect until 31
December 2026.

2.2

To approve the updated Suppliers Charter as attached at Appendix 4b with effect until 31
December 2026.

Page 19

3.0

Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1

The updated Social Value Policy will provide greater clarity and understanding to Council
officers responsible for commissioning supplies and services to maximise delivery from the
supply chain through the procurement and contracting process. The Suppliers Charter has
been updated to provide prospective suppliers with a user-friendly guide to adopting policy
and practice, which aligns with the Council’s key principles of embedding good employment,
social, environmental and community practices within their organisation.
The updated Social Value Policy includes a key action to develop further measures to
evaluate, quantify and report on benefits realisation of Social Value gains for the town using
the National TOMs (Themes, Outcomes and Measures) framework to provide a minimum
reporting standard for measuring social value. The National TOMs framework has been
designed around 5 principal issues, 20 Core Outcomes and 48 Core Measures:
Themes- The overarching strategic themes that the council is looking to pursue.
Outcomes- The objectives or goals that the council is looking to achieve that will contribute
to the Theme.
Measures- The measures that will be used to assess whether these Outcomes have been
achieved.

Strengthening the social value policy, will deliver key changes including a more focused social
value approach; measurable social value indicators aligned with council objectives, greater
understanding of what is being delivered, an ability to report on the financial/monetary value
of the measures across contracts, and the introduction of regular reports to directorate
management teams supported by an annual social value performance report for Corporate
Leadership Team/Cabinet.
The Council’s experience in incorporating corporate social responsibility obligations into
tendering and contracting provides a solid platform to ensure that the Council’s statutory
obligations to deliver Social Value are not only met but also surpassed.
3.2

Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by the
Council?

No

3.3

Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget?

Yes

Page 20

4.0

Other alternative options to be considered:

4.1

Without specific action to define requirements, guidance and support, the potential benefits
of the Public Services (Social Value Act2012) may not be realised to their full potential.
Public perception of Blackpool Borough Council may be undermined if it is not seen to be
fully engaged with requirements of the Act, which is complementary to existing procurement
legislation.

5.0

Council priority:

5.1

The relevant Council priorities are both:
 “The economy: Maximising growth and opportunity across Blackpool”
 “Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing resilience”

6.0

Background information

6.1

The Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 took effect on 31 January 2013 and requires any
public body buying or commissioning public services to consider how their local area may
benefit by including economic, social or environmental benefits within their procurement
process.

6.2

The Social Value Act is designed as a tool for enabling Public Service commissioners to be
more innovative in their procurement methods and encouraging more responsive service
delivery with the potential of delivering significant community benefits and potential cost
savings from its supply chain.

6.3

A review of the Social Value Act by Lord Young (Cabinet Office) was published in February
2015. This review informs that:
• Local Authorities and Housing Associations are making fuller use of the provisions in the Act
compared to Central Government and the National Health Services;
• Further work is needed on raising awareness on the supplier side, however there is good
awareness from the voluntary sector and growing awareness from big business but less so
amongst smaller firms;
• Deriving methods for measuring and quantifying outputs from Social Value gains are
important and references examples of successful case studies to base further development
on.

6.4

Following approval of the Social Value Policy in 2014, work to establish a framework to
embed Social Value into key tendering and contracting documents was undertaken. All
prospective suppliers are requested to outline in their tender submissions how they align
with the key principles of the Council’s Suppliers Charter and what actions they intend to
commit to deliver Social Value throughout the contract term. In 2017, the Executive agreed
to introduce a minimum 20% weighting to be applied to evaluation of all Council tenders.

Page 21

This has led to improved levels of Social Value delivery from suppliers. The updated Policy
and Charter will provide further steps to maximise delivery, and monitor/report outputs and
outcomes on a regular basis.
6.5

In addition to the updated Policy and Charter, the Suppliers Social Value Guide has been
refreshed and a new on-line user-friendly version will be introduced and included with tender
documents as soon as the policy and charter are launched.

6.6

The audit report carried out in November 2019, ‘Review of Contract Management and Social
Value’; identified that there are inconsistent contract management practices across the
Council; and has been acknowledged as a risk area throughout the Council.
Updating the Council’s key Social Value documents will help to address risk and deliver
improved outputs and outcomes. Discussions with other Local Authorities also identified the
need for educating internal staff responsible for commissioning and contract management,
and suppliers including local small and medium sized enterprises and the voluntary,
community and social enterprises.

6.7

Does the information submitted include any exempt information?

7.0

List of Appendices:

7.1

Appendix 4a - Social Value Policy
Appendix 4b - Suppliers Charter

8.0

Financial considerations:

8.1

The proposed arrangements do not in themselves deliver any direct financial gains for the
Council. The arrangements implemented fully will act as a means of enabling community
engagement, economic value, and sustainable development across the borough. Suppliers
will be required to develop local capacity and generally seek to improve the social,
environmental and economic wellbeing of the borough and contribute to the Council’s
priorities and objectives detailed in the Council Plan.

8.2

The development of the Blackpool Themes, Outcomes and Measures framework through
approval of the revised Social Value Policy and Suppliers Charter will potentially lead to
attaching monetary values to deliverables; this area will be further explored to ensure the
Council maximises the benefit for the town.

Page 22

No

9.0

Legal considerations:

9.1

There is a statutory requirement to comply with the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012.

10.0

Risk management considerations:

10.1

As identified in the internal audit report mentioned earlier, poor contract management can
lead to non-delivery with suppliers failing to live up to their contractual obligations. This in
turn will impact upon the economic recovery to the borough, which is an essential
requirement particularly in the recovery period following the Covid-19 pandemic.

10.2

Failure to strengthen arrangements to further embed Social Value into the Council’s
commissioning and sourcing activities will lead to complacency and a lost opportunity to
deliver social, community and environmental benefits across the borough. It is envisaged that
the updated policy and charter will support and assist local suppliers to access tendering
opportunities advertised by the Council.

11.0

Equalities considerations:

11.1

Procurement Regulations require equal treatment of all tenderers throughout the process.

12.0

Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations:

12.1

The updated policy and charter will act as a means of enabling sustainable development, and
generally seeks to focus suppliers on setting performance targets that will deliver climate and
environmental improvements. This will support the Council’s Climate Emergency Strategy
through measures incorporated within the Themes, Outcomes and Measures framework, will
link suppliers into the Green and Blue Infrastructure Strategy and will act as a lead to build up
capacity with local small and medium sized enterprises and voluntary, community and social
enterprises.

13.0

Internal/external consultation undertaken:

13.1

Internally the Council’s Corporate Social Value Group has considered the updated Social
Value Policy and Suppliers Charter. Key suppliers on current regeneration and development
projects have also been contacted for their views and feedback on the current suite of social
value documents and guide.

14.0

Background papers:

14.1

None.

Page 23

15.0

0Key decision information:

15.1

Is this a key decision?

15.2

If so, Forward Plan reference number:

15.3

If a key decision, is the decision required in less than five days?

15.4

If yes, please describe the reason for urgency:

16.0

Call-in information:

16.1

Are there any grounds for urgency, which would cause this decision to be
exempt from the call-in process?

16.2

Yes
10/2021

If yes, please give reason:

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC GOVERNANCE
17.0

Scrutiny Committee Chairman (where appropriate):
Date informed:

18.0

31 March 2021

Date approved:

Declarations of interest (if applicable):

18.1
19.0

Executive decision:

19.1
20.0

Date of Decision:

20.1
21.0

Reason(s) for decision:

21.1

Page 24

No

No

22.0

1Date Decision published:

22.1
23.0

Executive Members in attendance:

23.1
24.0

Call-in:

24.1
25.0

Notes:

25.1

Page 25

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 4a: Social Value Policy for Blackpool Council
Blackpool Council – Social Value Policy
1.0

Purpose

This policy sets out the legal context for social value and the seven social value objectives that
Blackpool Council has agreed to deliver through commissioning and procurement activities.
The policy will be supported by our supplier’s charter and social value guide, which sets out the
expected outcomes for each objective and provides examples of how suppliers could contribute
towards these outcomes.
2.0
What do we mean by Social Value?
Social Value is the added value secured from the delivery of local services and supplies that can help
to deliver additional social, environmental or economic benefits. By leveraging our spend to deliver
social value, we can ensure it further contributes to delivering the two priorities of the 2019-2024
Council Plan: Maximising Economic Growth and Creating Stronger Communities.
Blackpool Council provides services and secures supplies to support the delivery of these strategic
outcomes, which often deliver more than the originally specified outcomes and outputs. Such
additional benefits frequently create a positive impact for local communities at no additional cost.
Tangible benefits can be delivered in line with the procured service but could include providing jobs,
apprenticeships and internships for local people especially from disadvantaged groups; supporting
local growth through increased spend with SME’s and VCSE groups; increased spend in the local
supply chain; encourage sustainable travel and reporting on carbon targets and progress; supporting
the council in their efforts towards being zero carbon neutral by 2030- through a variety of
programmes and initiatives; pay the Joseph Rowntree living wage, and provide training support and
mentoring programmes; help build resilient communities by improving well-being and mental health
;free training for volunteers to help build community resilience, or taking measures to mitigate
pollution such as planting trees, all practical examples of what can be described as Social Value.
For the purposes of this policy, social value is defined as: A process whereby organisations meet their
needs for goods, services, works and utilities in a way that achieves value for money on a whole life
basis in terms of generating benefits not only to the organisation, but also to society and economy,
whilst minimising damage to the environment.
We can get added value from our investments and we recognise that our providers and suppliers also
share our ambition to improve the lives of our Blackpool community.
3.0 Why do we think it is important?
The Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012came into force on the 31st of January 2013. It is a legal
obligation for local authorities and other public bodies to consider the social good that could come
from the procurement of services before they embark upon it. With further investment administered
via the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership to help increase productivity within the Lancashire area; it's
now more important than ever to maximise the additional value from public funds; and to understand
that by using social value appropriately we can stretch the Blackpool pound and extract considerable
social, economic and environmental value from our contracts by identifying and capturing activity that
is of little or no cost to a supplier/provider but high strategic importance to Blackpool.
This social value policy will help Blackpool Council achieve more of its strategic aims with the same
money. It recognises the role that staff, stakeholders, citizens, suppliers and providers can play in
achieving better and greater outcomes; from reducing the number of individuals not in education,

Page 27

Appendix 4a: Social Value Policy for Blackpool Council
employment and training, or greater support to vulnerable residents, to spending money within the
local economy, and increasing the level of apprenticeships within Blackpool. Social value provides the
policy context to take advantage of new and creative opportunities to work with others, and to extract
the maximum value of the aims of Blackpool Council as set out in the Council Plan.
Our social value priorities are to:
Promote employment and economic sustainability – tackle unemployment and facilitate the
development of skills. Creating better employment and up skilling opportunities
Raise the living standards of residents – suppliers to work towards paying the Joseph
Rowntree living wage, maximise employee access to entitlements such as childcare and
encourage suppliers to source labour from within Blackpool
Promote participation and citizen engagement - encourage resident participation and
promote active citizenship, contributing to a sense of pride in the town
Build the capacity and sustainability of the voluntary and community sector– practical long
and short-term support for local voluntary and community groups. Free training for volunteers
and community groups.
Promote equity and fairness – target effort towards marginalised groups or which are facing
the greatest disadvantage, and tackle deprivation across the borough
Promote sustainability – reduce wastage, procure materials from sustainable sources, source
as local as possible
Deliver environmental benefits – reduce energy consumption, reduce carbon emissions;
contribute towards the councils 2030 0% net carbon target via using electric vehicles, local
supply chains, endorse and support use of public transport, supporting green schemes such
as our tree planting scheme, switching energy providers to green energy.
4.0

How will we use social value?

We need to proactively identify and capture social value within commissioning,
procurement/sourcing, and contract management activity, and in the way we work internally as an
authority. Consideration of social value will help providers and suppliers to identify opportunities to
deliver to multiple council outcomes.
For example, could a Social Care service be used to create work opportunities for school leavers?
Could a large waste contract be shaped to offer support to local Voluntary, Community and Social
Enterprise (VCSE) providers by offering free bid writing training to the sector? Could a Blackpool wide
Public Health contract be delivered on a carbon neutral basis? Could a corporate stationary contract
encourage a supplier to ring fence a percentage of its supply chain requirements for Blackpool (& The
Fylde) businesses?
It is our intention to exceed the statutory requirements of the Public Services (Social Value) Act. We
will work towards considering and capturing social value within any requirement, for goods, works
and services. We will do this in the following ways:
a) Internally: We will become more proactive on our use of social value to deliver multiple
outcomes. As examples, we will consider social value when comparing different delivery
channels, embed social value in our wider policies and procedures, consider how grants can
both capture and support existing social value initiatives, and use partnership working to
encourage a consistent approach to social value across partner organisations.
b) Throughout the commissioning process: By engaging and working with stakeholders,
partners, suppliers, providers and citizens (as appropriate) to ask ‘how this requirement could
better be shaped to bring wider benefits for Blackpool? Additionally, we will develop the use
of health impact assessments to maximise our social value opportunities and inform both

Page 28

Appendix 4a: Social Value Policy for Blackpool Council
decision-making processes and specifications.
c) At the procurement stage: Through either the use of social value requirements as award
criteria to evaluate the merits of respective bids, and/or stipulating social value performance
requirements that align with the council's strategic outcomes within the contract. It is not the
intention of the Council to impose social value requirements on suppliers and providers that
will create additional cost.
d) During contract management: Through closer contract management of our suppliers and
providers, we will seek further opportunities for them to provide increased social value.
4b

Embedding our approach to considering social value

To maximise social value at Blackpool Council, every commissioning and procurement exercise,
including tendering, service redesign and any other commissioning review will ensure that:
1. There is a focus on service redesign that considers social value from the outset.
2. There is a focus on commissioning for ‘outcomes’, meaning the long-term changes that services and
other activities achieve for the beneficiaries.
3. The approach to social value is ‘bespoke’ for each exercise.
4. At the start of the process of considering a commission, council officers will consider social value
and include discussions with providers, service users and stakeholders to assess the related and most
effective approach to embedding social value in any procurement process.
5. Every tendering exercise shall include at least one social value outcome as part of the award
evaluation criteria.
6. Social value priorities will be relevant and proportionate for each situation, with appropriate and
proportionate measures set out as part of the specification
7. Bidders will be scored on their responses to the question(s) about how they will deliver these social
value outcomes.
8. Procurement officers and commissioners will report on how they have considered social value in
the commission and note how social value will be monitored as part of performance monitoring.
9. Support for SMEs, social enterprises and community and voluntary organisations will be provided
wherever possible, including access to supply chains.
For significant procurements, the Council, or the CCG (Clinical Commissioning Groups) will produce a
specific plan showing how key stakeholders (existing and potential providers, service users) will be
involved. This would include how social value would be considered for that procurement.
4C

Contract Management

The implementation of social benefits can only be as successful as the monitoring and review
mechanisms contained in the final contract. Effective contract management is vital.
To ensure that social value objectives are delivered, it must be possible to measure and quantify the
outcome they pursue. Where social benefits have been used as award criteria, a carefully drafted
method statement can be adapted for use in a contract. Where open questions are adopted, or
proposals are modified during competitive dialogue thought must always be given to how proposals
can be measured and managed during the contract.
Robust monitoring against defined key performance indicators (KPIs) must also be included. KPIs
should be clearly drafted, achievable and reflect the importance of the social benefit to the project as
a whole. The data collection exercises should not be unnecessarily onerous, and the associated costs
should be proportionate to the value of the contract. There will be a need to conduct frequent reviews
and include appropriate incentives and disincentives to encourage compliance.

Page 29

Appendix 4a: Social Value Policy for Blackpool Council
Effective and fair contract management mechanisms can also foster a ‘partnership culture’ with a
supplier, bringing additional ‘soft’ benefits to project delivery.
5.0
What do we want to achieve?
By proactively working to secure social value within our work, the intension is to help deliver the
councils key priorities as defined in the council plan. In addition, the intention is to develop the
Blackpool market, from small charities and businesses to social enterprises and beyond. It may be
necessary to support organisations to a position where they are able to participate in the market. This
may entail consortia approaches as well as looking at ways to enhance co-operation and collaboration.
6.0

Covid recovery – helping to build back better

The COVID-19 pandemic has had an acute impact upon people and organisations across the public,
private and voluntary, community & social enterprise sectors. It has led to dramatic challenges
associated with health, the economy, employment, provision of essential goods and services, and
public sector finances. The crisis has also occurred in an era of global climate emergency. With the
increasing job losses across all sectors; it is vital to focus on improving employment opportunities to
not only improve the economic development of the town but for health, social and community
development reasons that help reduce the demand on essential services and to increase resilience,
ensuring people can withstand times of crisis; and reduce the need for more public spending. Social
Value is a driver to help initiate positive change and to ensure that we can respond and support our
communities effectively in times of need and plan for the future.
Many organisations have responded positively to these challenges. We have seen changes in the
behaviour of large businesses as they seek to become more socially responsible; greater levels of
cooperation between organisations across sectors; increased cycling and walking, with subsequent
health and environmental benefits; cleaner air in our towns and cities, and a growth in citizen
activism, with a commensurate desire amongst communities to improve their places. As we move
forwards and begin to look beyond the pandemic, there is an appetite not to return to the old ways
of doing things, but instead to accelerate and augment these positive changes.
Areas where positive change will have the greater effect will have greater focus such as.







Provide the best employment that you can
Keep the clean air in Blackpool
Create the employment and skills opportunities that we need to Build Back Better
Be part of a strong local community
Make your organisation greener
Develop a local, Fylde based and resilient supply chain

These objectives align strongly with the Blackpool Strategy, but have been lifted out as being relevant
and achievable as ‘social value’, backed up by accessible brokerage and support, and having increased
priority as a result of the coronavirus pandemic.
7.0

How are we going to capture and measure social value?

At strategic level the effective use of social value will contribute towards the outcome measurements
detailed in our council plan, and at operational level individual contract management data will
evidence any social value related continuous improvement. As we become more experienced in our
use of social value, we will.

Page 30

Appendix 4a: Social Value Policy for Blackpool Council

a) Create a database that details the social value outputs we have captured at the procurement
or contract management stage of the procurement cycle. This will be regularly distributed
both internally and externally to ensure that social value outputs are utilised to their
maximum potential.
b) Build a suite of case studies to practically demonstrate a range of approaches and outputs we
have achieved with social value.
c) Communicate successes widely; encouraging good practice and improve public confidence.
d) Consider and trial social value measurement (combining narratives with statistical data),
which will ultimately allow more sophisticated use of social value returns within both
commissioning and procurement processes.
8.0
Our commitment
We will always work to ensure that our social value related activity is aligned to the Councils Plan and
is complaint with all the relevant legal requirements. Whilst we consider social value to be about
improving social, economic and environmental wellbeing, we will ensure that all our actions meet with
the council values of openness and transparency, trust and respect, positivity, and flexibility.

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 4b

BLACKPOOL COUNCIL SUPPLIERS CHARTER
Introduction
Blackpool Council is a major purchaser of goods and services within the local economy and seeks to
act as a role model of good purchasing practice. Suppliers play a critical role in the delivery of public
services and we want to make sure there is a clear understanding of the Council’s needs.
This document sets out what we expect suppliers to adhere to when bidding for and delivering
contracts for goods, works and services.
Our aim is to adopt and ensure ways of working in our supply chains which:


Respect fundamental international standards against criminal conduct (such as bribery,
corruption and fraud) and human rights abuse (such as modern slavery), responding
immediately where they are identified, and;



Result in direct improvements to the working lives of people who contribute to our supply
chains.

Our purpose in doing this is to ensure our suppliers are delivering contracts responsibly, and we
build trust with the public by promoting a culture of high ethical standards that deter or expose poor
behaviour and practice.
Charter signatories are required to consider how they can make a positive contribution to the
economic, social and environmental well-being of Blackpool.

Blackpool Council Plan 2019-24
Blackpool faces many difficult challenges and we need to focus on the things that matter –
improving our tourism offer, creating a broad range of job opportunities for everyone in the town,
and creating stronger and safer communities. The 2019-2024 Council Plan is our response to this
picture. It’s our way of telling the story of our town so that everyone – residents, organisations and
visitors – understand what we’re doing, who we’re doing it with, and why we’re doing it.
Our vision for Blackpool continues to be:
To retain our position as the UK’s number one family resort with a thriving economy that supports
a happy and healthy community who are proud of this unique town.
Our Council Plan is built around three main goals, which give us a clear focus and direction as we
move forwards.
 The Local Economy : Maximising growth and opportunity across Blackpool
 Our local Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing resilience
 Organisational Resilience: Ensuring the efficient and effective running of the (Council)
organisation to enable (it) us to deliver quality services

Page 33

Appendix 4b
Charter Principles
The purpose of this charter is to set out some guiding principles, which Blackpool Council will adhere
to and to which we invite our contracted suppliers, the wider business community, other public
sector bodies and third sector organisations to adopt.
The Charter sets out six key principles which seek to embed the duty of the Public Services (Social
Value) Act alongside the Council’s aspiration to ensure all of its partners and suppliers adopt
corporate social and ethically responsible policy and practice.







Local employment
Local supply chains
Good employer
Green & sustainable
Best practice processes
Supporting our communities

Aims of the Suppliers Charter
The Council will:-



Seek delivery of economic, environmental and social benefit through decisions taken in
respect of procurement and commissioning activities; including its major regeneration
programmes.



Continue to work with local residents, businesses and organisations to identify the best way
to target and deliver social value benefits.



Ensure that social value requirements placed on businesses and other organisations are
relevant, proportionate and fair.



Focus on substantial procurement and regeneration investment to maximise the scale of
local benefit.



Work with Council departments, supplier businesses and community organisations subject
to this charter to improve understanding of social value and to continuously develop best
practice in its design and delivery.

Our Commitment to Suppliers
The Council is committed to:



Operating lawful procurement processes that ensure all rules and policies are fairly applied;
seeking to minimise cost to suppliers with equal access to relevant information.
Encouraging a diverse range of suppliers to compete for Council business.
Advertising all tenders on the North West e-Tendering Portal – The Chest
(https://procontract.due-north.com/)

Page 34

Appendix 4b








Balance opportunities with value for money by considering the division of larger contracts
into smaller lots, to give SMEs and the Voluntary and Community Sector an equal chance to
tender for them.
Conducting supplier information days to support suppliers in submitting compliant tenders.
Publishing guidance on how to do business with us via the Council website with clear
specifications and instructions with all tender opportunities advertised.
Respond to enquiries in a courteous, timely and professional manner offering constructive
feedback to suppliers in writing following the award of contracts.
Where invoices are not in dispute, meet contractual payment terms as laid down in the
Public Contract Regulations Act 2015.
Always act in line with our Council values of accountability, fairness, quality, trustworthiness
and compassion.

Signatories Of The Charter Will Commit To The Following:
Suppliers are required to align their organisational policy and practice with the six key principles of
the Charter and to consider how they can deliver the themes, outcomes and measures identified
below in their tender submissions:

Social Value Themes, Outcomes and Measures (TOM’S)
Themes
Employing
locally
and
responsibly

Outcomes

Measures

- Increased local employment
- Employees paid the living wage
- A high level of employee
development

-

- Supporting those most
disadvantaged in the labour market
- Commonly practised high ethical
and corporate social responsibility
(CSR) standards in sourcing and
employment

-

No. of new jobs
No. of apprentices/internships
No. of employees paid the living wage
No. of staff progressed to a higher skill
level
No. of contracts committed to the
prompt payment code, no abuse of
zero-hour contracts, no blacklisting,
compliance with Human Rights
Act/Modern Slavery Act/ILO Labour
Standards, have a whistleblowing
scheme
Not tolerate harassment, intimidation
or discrimination
Provide a safe and hygienic working
environment

Sourcing
Locally

- Promote locally sourcing contracts
- and supply chains
- Prosperous local SME’s

-

Spend with local suppliers (£)
Spend with local SME’s (£)
(Any business with an FY postcode)

Green and
sustainable

- Reduced carbon emissions
- Cleaner air and less pollution

-

Carbon emissions saved (tonnes of
‘CO2 equivalent’ per year)

Page 35

Appendix 4b

Supporting
and engaging
with local
communities

- Enhanced public open spaces, trees,
wildlife, and historic/cultural
environment
- Reduced impact of waste, adopt the
‘reduce, reuse and recycle’ circular
economy philosophy
- -Reduced impact from manufacture
of goods supplied, including from
use of natural resources
- -Be a good neighbour, minimise
negative local impacts (e.g., noise,
air quality)
- -Utilise environmentally sustainable
products and materials.

-

- Increased capacity and sustainability
of the local voluntary and
community sector
- An open channel of communication
between businesses and
communities
- Support health initiatives
- (particularly around mental health
and wellbeing)

-

-

-

-

Miles of travel or transportation per
year converted to zero or low emissions
Tonnes of waste eliminated or dealt
with in a ‘greener’ way
(in accordance with the UK’s waste
hierarchy)
Value (£) spent (or in kind) to create
/improve/protect public open space for
wildlife/environment

Value (£) of investment/support in the
community /through charity.
Value (£) of generated volunteering
opportunities
No. of visits to local schools and
colleges
No. of work experience opportunities
provided to pupils/ disadvantaged
groups /long-term unemployed.
No. of health/wellbeing promotion
interventions supported for staff,
customers and the community

Securing Social Value Through Procurement
Securing social value through procurement is an effective way to help address economic, social and
environmental concerns in local communities.
Social value is a significant factor in terms of the scoring and awarding of contracts, alongside core
service quality and cost. Social value commitments are required in all contracts irrespective of value.
In order to maximise social value we will target disadvantaged groups in Blackpool. In doing so, business
and other organisations are then able to make the biggest difference to local communities, creating and
sustaining jobs and other tangible ways of reducing poverty and improving health and quality of life for
local residents.
Through effective local procurement, we can make a global impact. We can do this through ethical and
environmental initiatives considering a products lifecycle from the responsible sourcing of materials and
manufacturing, through to more products that are durable and reduce amount of waste at end of life.

Measuring Impact

Page 36

Appendix 4b
A clear scoring framework for social value will be embedded in all tenders and contracts to ensure
transparency in awards and post award delivery commitments.
The Council recognises that our large regeneration projects provides a huge opportunity for social value
delivery, but it is equally important to seek social value benefits across all its tenders and contracts.
It is important to ensure that suppliers understand both the Council’s vision and how to implement and
respond to social value questions in tender responses. Therefore, we will establish with our delivery
partners and suppliers key performance indicators (KPIs), based on the Themes Outcomes and Measures
(TOM’s) outlined in this document to demonstrate the benefits delivered by this charter.
It is expected that suppliers produce KPI reports and submit these along with supporting case studies
regularly on a monthly or quarterly basis (as directed) throughout the life of the project to the council
for monitoring and reporting purposes.

To Deliver Social Value
The Council aims to lead by example in generating meaningful and tangible social value benefits for our
community, and will actively collaborate with other organisations with similar objectives. This will
extend to the Council’s wholly owned companies, strategic public-sector bodies, supplier and other
businesses, and third sector organisations who have the potential to secure significant social value. The
Council will support these organisations to develop policies and procedures with the aim of delivering
greater social value benefits across the borough.

Why Will Signing Up To The Charter Be Good For My Business?
By signing the Charter, you are telling other businesses and customers in Blackpool that you are
committed to:





Spending your Blackpool pound with local companies to maximise the economic benefit to the
town.
Recruiting locally, being a good employer and creating opportunities for employee
volunteering
Looking after the local environment
Supporting the health, well-being and resilience of our communities

‘This Charter is a statement of intent of the Council’s commitment to our suppliers and the expectations
we have of current and potential suppliers, it does not hold any legal status.’

For the Council:

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
Councillor Lynn Williams, Leader of the Council

Page 37

Appendix 4b
For the Contractor:

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
Contractor’s Authorised Representative

Page 38

Agenda Item 5
Report to:

EXECUTIVE

Relevant Officer:

Alan Cavill, Director of Communications and Regeneration

Relevant Cabinet Member :

Councillor Mark Smith, Cabinet Member for Business, Enterprise
and Job Creation

Date of Meeting:

12 April 2021

LEVELLING UP AND COMMUNITY RENEWAL FUND
1.0

Purpose of the report:

1.1

To summarise the main provisions of the Levelling Up Fund and Community Renewal Funds
announced in the March 2021 Budget and the Council’s approach to managing applications
for these funds.

2.0

Recommendations:
To agree the proposed approach to managing these funds including:

2.1

In respect of the Levelling Up Fund
a) To agree for the Council to submit one Levelling Up Fund bid by 18 June 2021 (with
the final content of the bid to be delegated to the Chief Executive after consultation
with the Leader of the Council and relevant Cabinet Members).
b) To agree that subject to confirmation of the Council’s eligibility, for a second bid to be
submitted at a later date to be confirmed (with the final content of the bid to be
delegated to the Chief Executive after consultation with the Leader of the Council and
relevant Cabinet Members).
c) To note the possibility of a cross boundary transport bid to be explored with Fylde
Borough Council, Wyre Borough Council and Lancashire County Council.
d) To consult the Town Deal Board and the local MPs on the proposed bids.
e) To agree that the Executive will receive a report on the bid submitted.

2.2

In respect of the Community Renewal Fund
f) To note the arrangements that have been put in place to invite submissions to enable
them to be appraised and submitted by the 18 June 2021 deadline.
g) To agree for approval of the final bid to be submitted to be delegated to the Chief
Executive after consultation with the Leader of the Council and relevant Cabinet
Members.

Page 39

h) To agree that the Executive will receive a report on the bid submitted.
3.0

Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1

These two new funds were launched in the Budget in March 2021. Blackpool has the
opportunity to submit a bid into each fund by 18 June 2021 resulting in the need to
move quickly to establish arrangements for formulating bids with the maximum
chance of success. Approval to the approach is required.

3.2

Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by the
Council?

No

3.3

Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget?

Yes

4.0

Other alternative options to be considered:

4.1

The guidance for submission into the funds and the initial deadlines to be met are clearly set and
immoveable. The only options to be considered are alternative projects but a review of the
most eligible and viable projects has been undertaken. Further bid(s), if eligible, will be submitted
for Levelling Up Fund at a later date when further rounds have been announced.

5.0

Council priority:

5.1

The relevant Council priority is: “The economy: Maximising growth and opportunity across
Blackpool”.

6.0

Background information
As part of the Budget the Chancellor announced a broad package of complementary UK-wide
interventions including:
• The UK Levelling Up Fund, which will invest in local infrastructure that has a visible impact on
people and their communities and will support economic recovery. The Fund will be jointly
managed by HM Treasury, the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government, and the
Department for Transport. This is a new approach to investing in local growth – ending siloes in
Whitehall that make it difficult to take a holistic approach to the needs of local areas
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/levelling-up-fund-prospectus
(see summary in Appendix 5a).

Page 40

• The UK Community Renewal Fund, which will provide local areas across the UK with access to
£220 million of additional funding as they prepare for the UK Shared Prosperity Fund due to launch
in 2022. It is targeted to help to level up and create opportunity across the UK in places most in
need in a manner distinct but complementary to the Levelling Up Fund, through investment in
skills, enterprise and employment.
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-community-renewal-fund-prospectus/ukcommunity-renewal-fund-prospectus-2021-22 (see summary in Appendix 5b)
• The UK Community Ownership Fund, which will empower communities to protect vital
community assets in their area by providing funding to take ownership over them, in support of the
social wellbeing of local communities.
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/community-ownership-fund/communityownership-fund
• The Plan for Jobs, which builds on the Department for Work and Pensions’ Jobcentre Plus
network, offering tailored support to help people find work, including through Youth Hubs, Restart,
and Kickstart. The Plan for Jobs will support longer term recovery from the unprecedented
economic impact of Covid-19.
• The Freeports programme, establishing national hubs for global trade and investment in every
nation of the UK, promoting regeneration and job creation and creating hotbeds for innovation that
will intensify the economic impact of British ports and generate increased economic activity in
areas in need of regeneration across the UK.
• The UK Infrastructure Bank, which will provide financing support to local authority and private
sector infrastructure projects to help meet UK Government objectives on climate change and
regional economic growth. It will also establish an advisory function to help with the development
and delivery of projects.
• The Towns Fund, providing £3.6 billion to drive the economic regeneration of deprived towns and
deliver long-term economic and productivity growth, by renewing and reshape town centres and
high streets in a way that drives growth, improves user experience, and ensures future
sustainability.
LEVELLING UP FUND
6.1

The Levelling Up Fund is a capital scheme that will invest in local infrastructure that has a visible
impact on people and their communities and will support economic recovery .This includes a range
of high value local investment priorities, including transport schemes, urban regeneration projects
and cultural assets. The Fund will be delivered through local authorities and will focus on capital
investment in local infrastructure. Appendix 5a provides a detailed background to the Fund.

Page 41

6.2

Key points
 Blackpool is in pole position as a Tier 1 area to apply in the first round.
 The Council already has some qualifying proposals worked up that failed to secure
Future High Streets funding and for highways Local Pinch Point funding that has now
been included within the Levelling Up Fund.
 Having been through the Town Deal process with the Town Deal Investment Plan and
having established the Town Deal Board, Investment Panel and Engagement Team,
we are geared up to meet the requirements regarding engagement and business case
preparation including having a panel of independent appraisers to hand.
 With having two MPs constituencies in the Council area the Council potentially
qualifies for two bids with a maximum of 3 projects in each up to a total value of
£20m for spend by 2024 noting that the Prospectus states that the number of bids
that a local authority can make will relate to the number of MPs in their area.
Accordingly, local authorities can submit one bid for every MP whose constituency lies
wholly within their boundary. Where an MP’s constituency crosses multiple local
authorities, one local authority should take responsibility as the lead bidder and local
areas should work together to designate that lead bidder MPs whilst not having a
power of veto, their support is part of the assessment. Blackpool South lies wholly
within Blackpool. Blackpool North and Cleveleys lies within Blackpool and Wyre
Borough Council.
 As Transport Authority Blackpool can also potentially qualify for a third bid of £20£50m for a cross-boundary transport project though this would need to be agreed
with Lancashire County Council who also potentially qualify as Transport Authority.
 Some projects which the Council is hoping to bring forward might be able to be
advanced initially through the Community Renewal Fund (see 6.6 below).

6.3

Current position
Blackpool has far more potential schemes that the funds available but the eligibility criteria
reduce what is possible. Preliminary discussions have started with both Blackpool MPs and
the neighbouring authorities to establish their views. Projects that are already relatively
worked up and can start in the 2021/22 year are a key requirement for the first round
alongside the need to keep below the £20m limit and a 3 project limit. For a first round bid to
meet these criteria would require a primary focus on the Blackpool South constituency
although acknowledging that the town centre lies in both Parliamentary constituencies.
Potential projects include those that did not receive support through the Future High Streets
Fund process (such as the Post Office refurbishment for a boutique hotel, land acquisitions
to support the major town centre office development and the Adelaide Street Transport
Hub), the extension of the Quality Corridors scheme and public realm improvements towards
Central Drive to continue the implementation of the Revoe Masterplan, all present strong
possibilities that will be assessed against the detailed qualifying criteria.

Page 42

Other schemes would also be developed if Blackpool qualifies for a second bid once the
criteria and timelines associated with that are known with a focus on the Blackpool North
constituency.
Community Renewal Fund
6.4

The Community Renewal Fund will provide local areas across the UK with access to £220
million of additional funding as they prepare for the UK Shared Prosperity Fund due to launch
in 2022. It is targeted to help to level up and create opportunity across the UK in places most
in need in a manner distinct but complementary to the Levelling Up Fund.
The Investment priorities should nurture innovative thinking and offer flexibility. Projects
may align with one, or deliver across several, of the following investment priorities:
 Investment in skills
 Investment for local business
 Investment in communities and place
 Supporting people into employment

6.5

Key points
 Blackpool Council, as lead authority, is required to invite project proposals from a
range of local applicants, including community sector organisations, umbrella
business groups and local education providers including universities etc.
 The Council must appraise these projects and prioritise a shortlist of projects up to a
maximum of £3 million with a bid deadline of 18th June 2021.
 90% of funding is revenue funding. Match funding is encouraged but is not
mandatory. A minimum of 10% of costs to be used towards scheme monitoring and
evaluation.
 A range of projects by theme and size can be submitted but it is encouraged that to
maximise impact and deliverability, larger projects of £500,000+ are submitted.
 All project activity must be able to be completed by March 2022.
 Successful bids will be notified “late July onwards” which means that projects will
have to be delivered within a maximum of 8 months.

6.6

Current Position
As noted above, it is proposed that the Town Deal Board and its sub group, the Town Deal
Investment Panel, provide the overarching assurance for the bid submission subject to the
Executive’s final approval.
Owing to the requirement to approach community stakeholders and organisations and the
broad range of funding themes, a corporate group of Council officers was brought together
to form the Community Renewal Fund Project Team to develop a compliant process. This
includes:

Page 43










Growth and Prosperity Team (overall coordination)
Corporate Delivery Unit (community engagement and net zero/low carbon)
Economic Development (for business and skills)
Adult, Community and Family Learning (skills)
Economic Development Arts Team (culture and heritage)
Public Health Directorate (community engagement and equalities)
Strategic Housing Team (community organisation knowledge and engagement)
Adult, Community and Family Learning (skills, adult education, NEET)

Additionally, a consultancy (Ekosgen) has been appointed from a Council Framework Panel to
provide scheme development, appraisal and bid development support. The capacity funding
made available by the Government will be used to cover their costs.
In view of the tight timescales the Community Renewal Fund Project Team has now reviewed
with stakeholders the project application template, added local priorities to the Governmentdetermined assessment criteria, and set in train a process of widespread dissemination of the
opportunity using the Council’s website, social media and partner networks to ensure those
eligible to bid are made aware of the opportunity.
The timetable allows project applicants up to 4 weeks to develop a bid submission and
sufficient time to undertake appraisals, due diligence and final bid completion









6.7

Launch on Council website
Bid Application responses by
Appraisal of bids
TDIP Panel provided with summary of proposed projects
Town Deal Board progress update
Lead Authority Bid development
To provide the TDIP Panel/CLT with an early draft bid
Town Deal Board/Executive sign off (under delegation)
Bid submission

- 26th March
- 23rd April
- 26 April-5th May
- by 10th May
- 14th May Board
- 14th – 31st May
- w/c 31st May
- w/c 7th June
- w/c 14th June

Management and Governance Arrangements
Should the Council be successful with its bid, it is required to directly enter into funding
agreements with local successful bidders (possibly including any Council-led projects). The
role will also require undertaking claims, monitoring and assurance activity. Further work is
to be undertaken to understand the organisational implications of this
As the accountable body, Blackpool Council with retain overall responsibility for the delivery
of the projects with reports to the Corporate Leadership Team, Executive and Government as
required.

Page 44

6.8

Does the information submitted include any exempt information?

7.0

List of Appendices:

No

Appendix 5a: Levelling Up Summary
Appendix 5b: Community Renewal Fund summary
8.0

Financial considerations:

8.1

Without Levelling Up or Community Renewal Funding, the schemes would not be pursued.
Where any co-funding is required, this has already been provisionally agreed.

8.2

Where projects will be delivered by external partners, a funding agreement will be require
confirmation of co-funding. Claims would be only paid retrospectively based on evidence of
activity and spend defrayment.

8.3

Further work is to be undertaken to understand the organisational impacts of the Council’s
responsibilities for contracting, claims handling, and monitoring and evaluating activity with
finance, legal and audit.

9.0

Legal considerations:

9.1

As noted above, where funding may be provided to external providers, a legal agreement will
need to be developed and monitored accordingly.

9.2

Further work is to be undertaken to understand the organisational impacts of the Council’s
responsibilities for contracting, claims handling, and monitoring and evaluating activity with
the Council’s finance, legal and audit teams.

10.0

Risk management considerations:

10.1

With all major schemes there are risks, and each scheme will have a risk assessment
developed and allocated to it.

11.0

Equalities considerations:

11.1

There are no equalities issues with the programme outlined. With regards to Levelling Up
fund projects which are capital based, where any development requires new build or
redesign e.g. full equalities and accessibility requirements will be taken into account at the
design stage. The Community Renewal projects by their very nature will be targeted “at all”
but equalities will be assessed as part of the appraisal process.

Page 45

12.0

Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations:

12.1

Reducing the impact of climate change and ensuring sustainability will be taken into account
as projects need to evidence how they will work towards the aims of the government “Net
Zero” policy as a requirement of the bid submissions.

13.0

Internal/external consultation undertaken:

13.1

With the Levelling Up Fund the Town Deal Board and its engagement processes provide an
established method of consultation on projects.

13.2

The Community Renewal Fund, by its very nature of requiring widespread promotion of the
fund will be able to provide evidence of engagement.

14.0

Background papers:

14.1

None.

15.0

0Key decision information:

15.1

Is this a key decision?

15.2

If so, Forward Plan reference number:

15.3

If a key decision, is the decision required in less than five days?

15.4

If yes, please describe the reason for urgency:

16.0

Call-in information:

16.1

Are there any grounds for urgency, which would cause this decision to be
exempt from the call-in process?

16.2

No

If yes, please give reason:

Page 46

N/A

No

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC GOVERNANCE
17.0

Scrutiny Committee Chairman (where appropriate):
Date informed:

18.0

31 March 2021

Date approved:

Declarations of interest (if applicable):

18.1
19.0

Executive decision:

19.1
20.0

Date of Decision:

20.1
21.0

Reason(s) for decision:

21.1
22.0

1Date Decision published:

22.1
23.0

Executive Members in attendance:

23.1
24.0

Call-in:

24.1
25.0

Notes:

25.1

Page 47

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 5a:
LEVELLING UP FUND SUMMARY
a) Fund Background
The Levelling Up Fund, which applies to the whole of the UK, brings together the Department
for Transport, the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government and the Treasury
to invest £4.8 billion in high-value local infrastructure up to 2024-25.
The Fund will invest in local infrastructure that has a visible impact on people and their
communities. This includes a range of high value local investment priorities, including transport
schemes, urban regeneration projects and cultural assets. The Fund will be delivered through
local authorities and will focus on capital investment in local infrastructure.
The Fund is designed to help local areas select genuine local priorities for investment by putting
local stakeholder support, including the local MP where they want to be involved, at the heart.
It should have a visible, tangible impact on people and places, and support economic recovery.
b) Where is the Fund Targeted?
Initial guidance reflects the first round of the Fund, which will prioritise bids that can
demonstrate investment or begin delivery on the ground in the coming 2021/22 financial year.
The amount of funding each area receives will be determined on a competitive basis to ensure
value for money.
Within the competition, funding will be targeted towards places with the most significant need,
as measured by an index taking into account the following the following place characteristics:
• need for economic recovery and growth;
• need for improved transport connectivity; and,
• need for regeneration.
Using this index, Blackpool has been placed into category 1, representing a place with the
highest levels of identified need.
Bidding authorities are required to consult local Members of Parliament as part of their bid;
though such support from local MPs is not a necessary condition for a successful bid. MPs can
have a positive role in prioritising bids and helping broker local consensus. When considering
the weighting given to bids, the expectation is that an MP will back one bid which they see as a
priority, and any bid may have priority backing from multiple MPs and local stakeholders.
The number of bids that a local authority can make will relate to the number of MPs in their
area. Accordingly, local authorities can submit one bid for every MP whose constituency lies
wholly within their boundary (so Blackpool can potentially submit two).

Page 49




Blackpool North and Cleveleys is largely in Blackpool BC with a few wards in Wyre
Blackpool South is entirely within Blackpool BC’s boundary

Where an MP’s constituency crosses multiple local authorities, one local authority should take
responsibility as the lead bidder and local areas should work together to designate that lead
bidder.
The Fund will focus investment in projects that require up to £20m of funding. A minimum of
10% co-funding is needed with a contribution from private sector stakeholders required.
However, there is also scope for investing in larger high value transport projects, by exception.
Bids above £20m and below £50m will be accepted for transport projects only, such as road
schemes, and can be submitted by any bidding local authority. They will be subject to a more
detailed business case process and will need to score highly overall.
Bidding authorities are encouraged to collaborate with neighbouring authorities on cross
boundary schemes and to submit joint proposals across their local areas where appropriate.
Consultation with relevant local stakeholders and partners is deemed important. Bids should
demonstrate evidence of this overall local engagement as part of their strategic case through
stakeholder letters or similar.
c) What Can be Funded?
The first round of the Fund will focus on three themes:
I.

Smaller transport projects :- that make a genuine difference to local areas; investments
including (but not limited to)
 Investments in new or existing cycling provision.
 Improved priority for local bus services (e.g. bus priority lanes or signal priority at
junctions).
 Enhanced public transport facilities, such as bus stops and stations.
 Accessibility improvements to local transport networks for disabled people.
 Enhancements and upgrades to local road networks (e.g. by passes and junction
improvements.
 Structural maintenance works to local roads, including bridges.
 Multi-modal proposals which combine two or more interventions to enhance
transport across modes.
Proposals for high-impact small, medium and by exception larger local transport
schemes should look to reduce carbon emissions, improve air quality, cut
congestion, support economic growth and improve the experience of transport
users.

Page 50

II.

Town centre and high street regeneration : Investments including (but not limited to):
 Regenerating key leisure and retail sites and improving their security, in order to
encourage new businesses and public services to locate there.
 Removing derelict buildings and other eyesores to make way for new
developments.
 Site acquisition and remediation of abandoned or brownfield sites, for both
commercial and new residential use.
 Improving the public realm including high streets, parks and green spaces,
designing out opportunities for crime and anti-social behaviour.
 invest in secure community infrastructure and crime reduction
 Creating better connectivity between and within key retail and leisure sites.

III.

Support for maintaining and expanding the UK’s world-leading portfolio of cultural
and heritage assets
Projects submitted for appraisal under this investment theme may include:
• Upgrading and creating new cultural and creative spaces including sports or
athletics facilities, museums, arts venues, theatres, libraries, film facilities,
prominent landmarks or historical buildings, parks or gardens.
• New, upgraded or protected community hubs, spaces or assets (and associated
green spaces).
• Acquiring and refurbishing key cultural and heritage sites including hotels and
historic buildings
 Cultural investment maintaining, regenerating, or creatively repurposing
museums, galleries, visitor attractions , heritage assets as well as creating new
community-owned spaces to support the arts and serve as cultural spaces
Proposed investments should actively complement, rather than duplicate or compete
with funding already delivering or set to deliver in their areas (such as through the
Heritage High Streets Fund).
Investment proposals should focus on supporting high priority projects that will make a
visible impact in local areas. projects should be aligned to and support Net Zero goals:
for instance, be based on low or zero carbon best practice; adopt and support
innovative clean tech and/or support the growth of green skills and sustainable supply
chains.

c) Fund Targeting and Application Detail
The Levelling Up Fund is a competitive fund, with funding distributed to places across the
UK on the basis of successful project selection and funding will be targeted towards places
with the most significant need, as measured by an index taking into account the following
the following place characteristics:

Page 51

• need for economic recovery and growth;
• need for improved transport connectivity; and,
• need for regeneration.
The first round of funding, will prioritise projects which are able to demonstrate investment
or begin delivery on the ground in the 2021-22 financial year. There will be future
opportunities to bid in subsequent rounds. It is expected all funding provided from the Fund
to be spent by 31 March 2024, and, exceptionally, into 2024-25 for larger schemes.
Local authorities can only have one successful bid for each of their allocated number of
bids over the lifecycle of the Fund. Local authorities are therefore encouraged to consider
whether bids that they wish to submit for the first round of the Fund reflect their local
priorities, or if they should wait until later rounds so that they have more time to consider
and develop their proposals.
Applications for funding should clearly demonstrate how proposed investments will support
relevant local strategies. Local areas will also need to show why the proposed investment
or set of investments represents the highest value local priorities.
Each bid submitted by local institutions can be a bid for an individual project or a package
bid consisting of multiple projects.
Package bids must clearly explain how their component elements are aligned with each
other and represent a coherent set of interventions. They can include a mix of projects
from the Fund’s three investment themes but any one bid should not include multiple
unrelated investments.
Local authorities may submit joint bids. The maximum bid size for joint bids will be
determined by adding up the individual £20 million caps of each bidding authority. Joint
bids will count towards the maximum number of bids that each local authority is able to
submit. Joint proposals can contain a combination of interventions both within counties,
regions and across borders. However, they must not be a disparate package of interventions
- as part of the strategic case bidders must demonstrate that joint bids are a cohesive and
coherent investment proposal.
In the case of package bids containing more than one project, bids should come in two
parts, covering the following:
• Part I (for the whole overall bid): a summary of the project proposals within the bid (up to
a maximum of three projects per bid); and an overall financial case;
• Part II (for each individual project): the main theme this falls under; summary and strategic
link to overall bid; information on deliverability (management, risk, finances, and benefits)

Page 52

To apply for investment from the first round of the Levelling Up Fund, bids must be
submitted by Friday 18 June 2021.
It is expected that investment decisions will be made by the UK Government for this funding
round by autumn 2021.
All applications must comply with the Public Sector Equality Duty, as set out in the Equality
Act 2010 and show how they will deliver in line with subsidy control (or State Aid).
Further guidance and templates for bid submissions, including package bids, will be
provided to local authorities shortly after Budget.
Assessment criteria
The assessment process will focus on the following key criteria:






Characteristics of the place – the local authority category representing the
highest level of identified need.
Deliverability - will be based on supplementary finance, management and
commercial cases, with bids able to demonstrate investment or which begin
delivery on the ground in 2021-22 financial year prioritised in the first round of
funding.
Strategic fit with local and Fund priorities – this should be addressed in the
strategic case of submissions and should include support from stakeholders.
Value for money – an economic case should be submitted to explain the benefits
of the bid and how it represents value for money.

Monitoring and evaluation of the Levelling Up Fund will involve a combination of national-level
evaluation activity with project-level monitoring and evaluation. As part of business case
development, local authorities should set out a proportionate plan for project-level monitoring
and evaluation
Capacity funding will be provided to local authorities. This will help support relevant local
authorities to develop high quality bids. A flat £125,000 of capacity funding will be allocated to
all eligible local authorities. This capacity funding will be provided with the primary intention of
supporting the relevant local authorities to develop their bids for later rounds of the Fund. It is
expected that local authorities will not be able to use the capacity funding in time to support
bids for the first round and that it will instead support the development of proposals for later
bidding rounds.

Page 53

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 5b: COMMUNITY RENEWAL FUND SUMMARY
1) Fund Background
The UK pays for EU structural funds through its EU Budget contributions, made of UK taxpayer’s
money. Local areas will continue to spend investment from EU structural funds until the end of
2023.
Further to Brexit, the UK Shared Prosperity Fund will be a new flagship policy in delivering on
this Government’s commitment to level up the country. This new Fund, to be launched in 2022,
will operate throughout the UK and play a part in uniting and levelling up the whole country. It
will target people and places most in need across the UK. To help the UK prepare for the
introduction of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund, this government is providing funding in 2021-22
through the UK Community Renewal Fund. This Fund aims to support communities to pilot
programmes and new approaches, aligning national and local provision.
The UK Community Renewal Fund aims to “support people and communities most in need
across the UK, creating opportunities to trial new approaches (pilot programmes) and
innovative ideas at the local level”.
Through this Fund, UK government will work directly with local partners, so that the people
that know their places best central to the decisions that impact their areas and lives. To ensure
that local communities are best placed to do this, the UK Community Renewal Fund is being
provided for 2021-22 – an additional £220 million of investment. This Fund, which this
prospectus outlines, will help support local areas to pilot imaginative new approaches and
programmes that unleash their potential, instil pride, and prepare them to take full advantage
of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund when it launches in 2022
2). Objectives of the UK Community Renewal Fund
 Enabling innovation through pilots
The UK Community Renewal Fund will support communities to pilot programmes and new
approaches ahead of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund. This includes removing barriers that
people face in accessing skills and local labour market opportunities, building the evidence base
for future interventions and exploring the viability of new ideas.
 Levelling up and creating opportunity
The UK Community Renewal Fund is a competitive process with no pre-set eligibility. In Great
Britain, to level up and create opportunity across the UK for people and 100 priority places have
been identified based on an index of economic resilience.
Investment priorities
To nurture innovative thinking and offer flexibility, projects may align with one, or deliver
across several, of the following investment priorities:

Page 55

1.

Investment in skills

2.

Investment for local business

3.

Investment in communities and place

4.

Supporting people into employment

90% of funding available through the UK Community Renewal Fund is revenue funding.
A range of projects by theme and size can be submitted but it is encouraged that to maximise
impact and deliverability, larger projects of £500,000 are submitted.
All project activity must be able to be completed by March 2022.
1. Investment in skills
The Fund will help equip people with the skills they need to seize new opportunities and ensure
their local communities are prosperous and productive. This includes equipping people with the
skills they need to capitalise on the opportunities and needs of their local area and meet the
needs of an increasingly green and digital economy.
Innovative projects are sought that address current and emerging local skills needs and are
complementary to broader place-based investment. Bids may include, but are not limited to
interventions that address:




Work-based training
Retraining, upskilling or reskilling members of the workforce
Promoting the advancement of digital skills and inclusion

2. Investment for local business
Targeted support for local business can help local residents through increased employment,
better training and in-work opportunities and creating new entrepreneurial ventures.
Projects that target support for under-represented groups and community-level interventions
that can increase opportunity for all, including coastal are sought.
Investment in pilots can also help create an innovation culture across the UK. This could be
through finding new ways to promote green and tech adoption, commercialisation or helping
create a pathway for upskilling local businesses through collaborations between higher
education and small businesses.
Innovative pilots and projects are sought that address local business and innovation needs. Bids
may include, but are not limited to, interventions that address:


Supporting entrepreneurs and helping businesses with potential to create more job
opportunities for current employees or take on new employees

Page 56




Encouraging businesses to develop their innovation potential
Supporting decarbonisation measures

3. Investment in communities and place
Communities are at the core of cultural and economic heritage and identity. The fund aims to
invest further to maximise opportunities to bring people together, build the social fabric and
boost recovery and resilience. In turn, this will create places where people want to work, visit
and live. Investing in improving, protecting and creating community and natural assets can
boost pride and wellbeing, drive productivity, attract and retain talent, and nurture a unique
sense of place.
Proposals for innovative pilots and projects that address community needs and support local
places. Bids may include, but are not limited to, interventions that address:





Feasibility studies for delivering net-zero and local energy projects
Exploring opportunity for promoting culture-led regeneration and community
development – for example investing in culture focused feasibility studies and
community facilities to attract people to places, including city centres and rural and
coastal towns.
Improving green spaces and preserving important local assets

4. Supporting people into employment
There needs action to reduce the additional barriers some people face to employment in order
to enable them to take advantage of the economic opportunities as the UK moves forward.
Investment here will help places provide local, tailored, wrap-around support to those furthest
from the labour market – focusing on individuals who find it difficult to engage with
mainstream provision or for whom mainstream provision is not an option. This will support
people in overcoming a variety of additional barriers to employment or mainstream
programmes, which they are unable to fully utilise without additional support.
Bids should also demonstrate how their proposal will complement mainstream activity, such as
the Kickstart Scheme, Restart Programme and other Plan for Jobs initiatives, highlighting what
wrap-around support is being proposed, and how the target audience will be identified and
engaged.
Pilots should draw upon and enhance multi-agency delivery teams, including the community
and voluntary sector along with public provision. They should bring together a range of service
providers to embed and provide a coordinated service to support individuals along the journey
to employment.

Page 57

Proposals for innovative pilots and projects are sought that focus on delivering bespoke
programmes, utilising a needs-based approach to support individuals to overcome their
multiple or complex barriers which inhibit their ability to gain employment. These pilots should
support those most disengaged from the labour market. Bids may include, but are not limited
to, interventions that address:


Supporting people to engage with local services which support them on their journey
towards employment
 Identifying and addressing any potential barriers these individuals may face in gaining
employment or moving closer to the labour market
 Raising aspirations, supporting individuals to access Plan for Jobs employment support,
jobs and find sustainable employment
 Supporting people to gain the basic skills they need to develop their potential for
sustainable work
 Testing what works in helping people move towards work
These pilot projects should enable an evidence base to understand what really works in
supporting people into employment. They should test ways of working collaboratively at a local
level, taking a multi-agency approach, working with Jobcentre Plus and including the
community and voluntary sector to provide the complete suite of support that those with
additional or complex barriers might face.
3). Application Process
Lead authorities (Blackpool Council) should invite project proposals from a range of local
applicants, including local district councils, voluntary and community sector organisations,
umbrella business groups and local education providers including universities. Lead authorities
should then appraise these projects and prioritise a shortlist of projects up to a maximum of £3
million per place for submission to UK government with a bid deadline of 18th June 2021. Late
July successful projects are targeted to be informed.
Timetable
Included here is a summary of the UK Community Renewal Fund timelines and key dates.
3 March 2021
 UK government publishes the UK Community Renewal Fund prospectus.


During March, lead authorities launch invite bids from for their places.

1 April 2021
 Bid assessment and coordination capacity funding can be incurred by lead authorities of
the 100 priority places in Great Britain.
18 June 2021
 Lead authorities submit a shortlist of project bids to UK government for assessment.

Page 58

Late July 2021 onwards
 UK government announces successful projects for the UK Community Renewal Fund.


First tranche of funding flows to lead authorities

November and December 2021
 Mid-point monitoring reviews of projects with lead authorities
31 March 2022
 UK Community Renewal Fund finishes.

The lead authority of each of the 100 priority places will receive capacity funding (£20,000) to
help them with this bid co-ordination and appraisal.
A detailed selection criteria is in place based around Strategic fit, Deliverability, effectiveness,
and efficiency
Leveraging other funds
The UK government encourages applicants and lead authorities to maximise the leverage of
other funding. It is recognised that not all projects or applicants will be able to secure match
funding, and it is not expected for employment support projects. However, value for money is a
selection consideration. This will take the overall funding package for each project, including
any match funding, into account.
Following conclusion of the selection process, the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government will enter into agreements with Lead authorities – for an agreed package of
projects

Page 59

This page is intentionally left blank

